

The Name of the Corporation is

## **Memory Chasers Car Club Ltd**

Referred to in this document as **MCCC**

**The Memory Chasers Car Club Ltd will follow this order of Authority**

### **Articles of Incorporation**

**Purpose**

**Bylaws**

**Parliamentary Authority**  
*Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised*

**And**

**Standing Rules**

### **Purpose**

The Memory Chasers Car Club Ltd, is a non-profit organization whose purpose is to raise monies for local charities, provide scholarships to area automotive students; through our cruises, car show, dance and other activities that promote interest in our community; We are "making memories for tomorrow from yesteryear" sharing the enjoyment of showing our collectible vehicles in and around the Endless Mountains.

**BYLAWS**

**MEMORY CHASERS CAR CLUB Ltd**

**ARTICLE I**  
Amended December 1, 2004  
**Members**

**Section 1**  
**Classes of Members, Eligibility and admission procedure**

**Full Member** participates in the activities of the MCCC. They shall have all the rights of membership, must own a "collectible" antique, classic, stock, muscle, custom, or modified vehicle (car, truck or motorcycle). Member must be a licensed driver. Vehicle must be insured. Must read and agree to Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws, and Standing Rules and shall become a member upon payment of the annual dues for the first year.

OR Be spouse or significant other of vehicle owner.

OR Be an Associate Member who attends meetings, participates in events, serves on committees etc, who shall be eligible for full membership provided that such associate member be proposed for membership by one member and seconded by another member at one meeting. Voting on the admission shall take place at the next regular meeting thereafter. A two-thirds vote shall elect to membership. A person so elected shall become a full member upon payment of the annual dues for the first year.

**Associate Member** Must be considering purchasing a vehicle and show an active interest in all club activities. Must follow all rules that apply to members and shall be entitled to all of the privileges except those of making motions, of voting and of holding office.

**Inactive Member** Any member whose dues is paid in full but is not able to fulfill duties of a member. Member must inform secretary of his intention to return as active member at a later date.

**Honorary Lifetime Member** Has been a Full Member in good standing but is no longer able to fulfill all requirements. Must be nominated for honor by one member and seconded by another member in writing before the first meeting of the year. By a three-fourths vote at this meeting, honorary lifetime membership will be conferred upon this member. An honorary member shall have none of the obligations of the membership, but shall be entitled to all of the privileges except those of making motions, of voting and of holding office.

**Section 2 Resignation from  
Membership**

Any member desiring to resign from the club shall submit his resignation in writing to the Secretary. The member's resignation becomes effective upon reading of the letter. No member's resignation shall be accepted until his dues are paid.

**Section 3**  
**Dues**

The annual dues shall be twenty dollars payable in advance on or before the first meeting of each year. A member shall be considered in good standing when his dues are paid on time. Dues shall be delinquent one month after they are due. If dues are not paid on time the Treasurer shall notify members in arrears, and those whose dues are not paid within two months shall be automatically dropped from membership.

**Section 4**  
**Member Duties**

Club members must obey all traffic laws at all times. No alcoholic beverages, illegal substances, or profanity is permitted. Members must be willing to work at any events that are scheduled. Members must further agree that any monies collected, will be given to charities as voted on by the members at regular meetings. *Further, members must agree that in the event that the club is dissolved, that any excess accumulated monies, after expenses will be given to a charity as selected by the club membership.*

## **ARTICLE II Officers**

### **Section 1 Officers and Duties**

The officers of the MCCC shall be a President, a Vice President, a Secretary and a Treasurer. These officers shall perform the duties prescribed by these bylaws and by the parliamentary authority adopted by the MCCC.

### **Section 2 Nomination Procedure, Time of Elections**

At the regular meeting held on the 1st Wednesday of the month in October a nominating committee of three to five members shall be formed by the MCCC. It shall be the duty of the committee to report at the November meeting the candidates to be nominated for the offices to be filled. Before the election of officers, at the Election Meeting in December, additional nominations from the floor shall be permitted.

### **Section 3 Ballot Election, Terms of Office**

The officers shall be elected by ballot at the Election Meeting. With the President and Vice President elected in even years the Secretary and Treasurer elected in odd years. They shall take office following the adjournment of the meeting at which they are elected. Elected officers shall serve a term of two years or until their successors are elected. A majority vote shall elect.

## **ARTICLE III Meetings**

### **Section 1 Regular Meetings**

The Regular meetings of the MCCC shall be held on the first Wednesday of each month from January to December inclusive unless otherwise ordered by the MCCC.

### **Section 2 Annual Meeting**

The regular meeting on the first Wednesday of January shall be known as the Annual Meeting. The Annual meeting shall be for the purpose of paying membership dues, forming Committees for the coming year and any other business that may arise.

### **Section 3 Election Meetings**

The regular meeting on the first Wednesday of December every year shall be known as the Election meeting and shall be for the purpose of electing officers, receiving reports of officers and committees, and for any other business that may arise.

### **Section 4 Special Meetings**

Special meetings may be called by the President or can be called upon the written request of eight members of the MCCC. The purpose of the meeting shall be stated in the call. Except in cases of emergency, at least three days notice to members shall be given.

### **Section 5 Quorum**

Quorum is determined at beginning of each year at the Annual Meeting.

## **ARTICLE IV Committees**

### **Section 1 Nominations and appointments to committees**

Members will be first asked to volunteer for committees of their choice. If not enough volunteers, members will be asked to serve by the President.

### **Section 2 Finance Committee**

A Finance Committee composed of the Treasurer and two other members shall be filled by members nominated from the floor and if necessary be asked to serve by the President, at the Annual Meeting. It shall be the duty of the committee to prepare a budget for the year beginning the first day of April, and to submit it to the members at the regular meeting' in March. The Committee will also make recommendations for the dollar amount for our scholarship awards for the next year and for the dollar amount awarded to our charities. The Finance committee may from time to time submit amendments to the budget for the current fiscal year, which may be adopted by a majority vote. The second duty of this committee will be to audit the Treasurer's accounts at the close of the fiscal year (December 31) and to report at the annual meeting.

### **Section 3 Community Event Co-ordination Committee**

This committee composed of the Secretary and four other members shall be filled by members nominated from the floor and if necessary be asked to serve by the President, at the Annual Meeting. This committee's duty shall be to plan the annual activities of the MCCC. To meet with area businesses to set up each cruise event. This committee's report on the Calendar of Events shall be submitted to the MCCC for its approval at the Election meeting in December. Subcommittees will include: Car Show Committee (seven members) active from January through June, Cruise Committee (five members) active from May through October and Sponsor Committee (eight members) active from January through May.

### **Section 4 Charity and Scholarship Committee**

A charity and Scholarship Committee of three members shall be filled by members nominated from the floor and if necessary be asked to serve by the President, at the Annual Meeting. This committee will research and recommend Charities for the support of the MCCC, to be voted on at the March Meeting; to supply schools with necessary forms that are part of our scholarship program by February. To read Scholarship applications and make recommendations for recipients to the MCCC members at the May Meeting.

### **Section 5 Other Committees; President's Ex-Officio Committee Membership**

Such other committees, standing or special shall first be filled by nominations from the floor then by members being asked to serve by the president. These committees shall from time to time, be deemed necessary to carry on the work of the MCCC. The president shall be an ex officio member of all committees except the nominating committee.

The Bylaws of the Memory Chasers Car Club ltd:

Amended: Article I, Members

December 1, 2004 Amended:

Article I, Members August 8,

2003 Adopted: December 4, 2002